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THIS WEEK:   

BACKGROUND:   

From: Pioneers of Polk County, Iowa, and Reminiscences of Early Days 

by L.F. Andrews, Volume II, 1908. 

 

First Things in Des Moines 
(portions of the chapter) 

 

On May Twentieth, 1843, Captain James Allen, with four officers and forty-four 

soldiers, arrived at the forks of the Des Moines and Raccoon rivers, on the 

steamboat Ione, the first steamboat to reach The 

Forks. It landed where the west end of the Court  

Avenue bridge now is. The mission of the soldiery 

was to establish a temporary military post. With them 

came four civilians, Doctor John S Griffin, who was 

made Post Surgeon; J. M. Thrift , a discharged  

soldier, father of the present Adjutant General Thrift, 

who was made Post Tailor, and Charles Worthington, 

who was assigned to duty as Blacksmith. His shop 

was on the bottoms near the ‘Coon, and in the rear of 

the soldiers’ quarters. That was the roster of Fort  

Raccoon, as Captain Allen had named the post. 

First Things in Des Moines 
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Fort Des Moines in 1844 

J. M. Thrift was the only one of the post roster who remained and became a  

resident and citizen of the new community, and therefore first white man of  

record in and for Des Moines. 

 

First Political Meeting—February Fourteenth, 1846, to select candidates for the 

several county officers to organize Polk County. 

 

First Election—April Sixth, 1846. 

 

First District Court—April Sixth, 1846, in one of the log barrack buildings on the 

‘Coon Row. 

 

First Clerk of the District Court—Perry L. Crossman. 

 

First Sheriff—“Uncle Tommy” Mitchell. 

 

First Church Organized—Methodist, January Fifth, 1845. 

 

First Physician (Civilian)—Doctor Thomas K. Brooks, September, 1845. 

 

First Frame Building—Two-story, at southeast corner of Third and Market streets, 

by David Solenbarger, in July, 1847. 

 

 



First Brick Dwelling—Corner of Fourth and Court Avenue, where the Valley  

National Bank now stands, by L. D. Winchester, in 1849. “Billy” Moore was  

married in it. 

 

First Tavern on the East Side—W. H. Meacham’s log cabin, near east end of the 

Grand Avenue bridge, in 1845. 

 

First Tavern on the West Side—Log cabin on Market 

Street, used as a blacksmith shop by the soldiers, to 

which was added a frame addition in 1846, by Martin X. 

Tucker, as he was called. He signed his name with an 

“X” and somebody else had to write the rest of it.  

 

First Drug Store—In the old soldiers’ Guard House, by 

Doctor F. C. Grimmel, October, 1846, corner of Third 

and Vine streets. 

 

First Public School—Organized November, 1849. 

 

First Post Office Building—A small, one-story frame, 

northeast corner of Second and Vine streets, built by   

Hoyt Sherman, Postmaster, in 1850. 

 

First Marriage License—Benjamin Bryant and Elvira Birge, June Eleventh, 1846. 

 

First Census Taken—July, 1846; population, one hundred and twenty-seven. 

 

First Record of Sale of Town Lot—August Fourteenth, 1846. 

 

First Mortgage of Record—June  Twenty-ninth, 1847. 

 

First Ice Dealer—Ed. R. Clapp, 1846. 

 

First Meat Market—“Uncle David” Norris, on Second Street, 1846, though John 

Hays always claimed priority to Norris. 

 

First Stage Coach—July First, 1849. 

 

First Stove Store—By Jesse F. Dicks, Number One, Mechanics’ Hall, Second 

Street, 1849. 

 

 

Hoyt Sherman 



First Coal Dug—By soldiers of the garrison, in 1843. 

 

First State Capitol—Opened January Eleventh, 1858. 

 

First Tailor—J. M. Thrift, on Second Street, 1845. 

 

First Citizens’ Store—By B. T. Hoxie, on Second Street, corner of Vine, 1846. 

 

First Photographer—G. L. Reynolds, 1856. 

 

First Ingrain Carpet—Brought by Mrs. Captain West, 1849. 

 

First Full-blooded Irishman—Michael McTighe, who came in 1854. He ran the 

Shamrock House, on Second Street, between Market and Vine; was a member of 

the City Council from 1861 to 

1877, and, with Michael Drady, 

ran the old First Ward to suit 

themselves. . . . 

 

First Brass Band—By C. A. 

Mosier, in 1855. 

 

First Piano—Was brought by  

Captain F. R. West, in 1853. 

 

First Drayman—Michael Kennedy, 

1853. 

 

First Steam Power Printing—By 

John Teesdale, 1859. 

 

First Carriage—Built by O. W. Munsell, for Captain West, 

in 1867. 

 

First Fire Company Organized—A volunteer, 1865. 

 

First Street Railway—1867, built by Doctor M. P. Turner. 

 

First Velocipede—By Wesley Redhead, July Twenty-

eighth, 1869. 

Velocipedes 
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First Furniture Dealer—C. D. Reinking, 1848. 

 

First Barber—John Chalmers, a Scotchman. He attempted to fill his lamp one 

evening with camphere, when it exploded. He was 

carried into the cabin of Elder Nash, which stood on 

Walnut, a short distance west for the Exchange 

Block, and died in a few hours. 

 

First Shoemaker—Nat. Campbell, 1845. He had a 

small log shop near the present corner of Sixth and 

Cherry, and made good shoes. 

 

First Bridge—A pontoon, at Grand Avenue, 1856, 

then known as Keokuk Street on the east side of the 

river, and Sycamore on the west side. 

 

First Bank—B. F. Allen, on Second Street, 1855. 

 

First “Grand Social Event”—A fancy dress party, Winter of 1859, at the home of 

Edwin Sanford, on Seventh Street below Mulberry, then the most fashionable  

portion of the town. About sixty invitations included all the society people. It was 

a hilarious aggregation of fun-makers. I don’t think Mrs. Judge Rice, “Friday”  

Eason, C. W. Keyes, B. F. Allen, John A. Kasson, or Mrs. Bina M. Wyman, then the 

most sedate and circumspect schoolma’am have forgotten it. There was real, solid 

enjoyment in the social events of those days, such as is not to be had in these 

days.  

 

B. F. Allen 


